ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 10, 2009
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 139

"An Act providing for an exception to allow drivers of public
utility notor vehicles to operate those vehicles with certain
screen devices operating and visible to the drivers.”

- MOVED HB 139 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 136
"An Act limting the release of certain information concerning
certain public enployees or officials.”
- MOVED CSHB 136( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 139

SHORT TI TLE. ALLOW SCREEN DEVI CES | N UTI LI TY VEHI CLES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO

02/ 18/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 18/ 09 (H) STA, JUD
03/ 10/ 09 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 136
SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C RECORDS EXCEPTI ONS
SPONSOR(s) : JUDI Cl ARY

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 10, 2009



02/ 16/ 09 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 09 (H) STA, JUD

02/ 26/ 09 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 26/ 09 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 26/ 09 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 10/ 09 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

ALLI SON LAFFEN, Staff

Representati ve Max G uenberg

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HB 139 on behal f of
Representati ve Gruenberg, co-sponsor.

PH L STEYER, Director

Government Rel ati ons and Cor porate Comruni cati ons
Chugach El ectric Association (CEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 139.

JI M PCSEY, Ceneral WManager

Anchorage Muni ci pal Light & Power

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Hs testinmony supporting HB 139 was
presented by Phil Steyer.

BRI AN NEWTQN, President/ CEO

CGol den Valley Electric Association (GVEA)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 139.

CURTI S THAYER, Director

Corporate & External Affairs

ENSTAR Natural Gas Conpany ("ENSTAR")

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 139.

DANA STROWMEN, St af f

Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of the House Judiciary Standing
Committee, sponsor, which is chaired by Representative Ranras,
di scussed changes to HB 136 incorporated in Version 26-LS0574\E,
Luckhaupt, 3/5/009.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 10, 2009



JANE PI ERSQN, Staff

Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
136, on behalf of the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee,
sponsor, which is chaired by Representative Ranras.

JOHN CYR, Executive Director

Public Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on ( PSEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136.

JEFF LANDVATTER, Sout heast Vi ce President

Board of Directors

Department of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136.

ROB  HUEN, Chief of Police, Anchorage Police Departnent,
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Had his testinony in support of HB 136
presented by Robert d en.

DEREK HSI EH, Presi dent

Executive Board

Anchorage Police Departnent Enpl oyees' Associ ati on ( APDEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Had his testinony relating the APDEA s
support of HB 136 presented by Robert d en.

ROBERT GLEN, Ser geant

Internal Affairs Unit

Anchor age Pol i ce Departnent

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 136.

KELLY TAYLOR, Deputy Adm nistrator

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 136.

SHARON WEDDLETQN, Chief Financial Oficer (CFO

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 136.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 10, 2009



ROBERT PEARSON, Special Assistant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 136.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor

Anchorage O fice

Di vision of Community and Regional Affairs

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity, & Econom c Devel opnent
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 136.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8. 05: 05 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
nmeeting to order at 8:05 a.m Representati ves Seaton, Johnson,
Petersen, and Lynn were present at the <call to order.

Representative G uenberg arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 139- ALLOW SCREEN DEVI CES I N UTILITY VEH CLES

8:05:43 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 139, "An Act providing for an exception to allow
drivers of public wutility notor vehicles to operate those
vehicles with certain screen devices operating and visible to
the drivers.™

8:05:47 AM

ALLI SON LAFFEN, Staff, Representative Max Guenberg, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 139 on behalf of Representative
Gruenberg, co-sponsor. She explained that House Bill 88, passed
during the Twenty-Fifth Al aska State Legislature, prohibits the
driver of an autonobile from operating a screen device, such as
a television, video nonitor, or portable conputer, wthin
hi s/ her view while the autonobile is in notion. Exceptions were
made at the time for cell phone and d obal Position System (GPS)
usage, as well as to address the needs of the Departnent of
Transportation regarding construction and mai ntenance. However,
because of an oversight, an exception was not made for public

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 10, 2009



utilities companies. The proposed legislation would correct
t hat oversi ght.

MS. LAFFEN expl ai ned the needs of the public utilities conpanies
by paraphrasing a portion of the sponsor statenent, which read
as follows:

This legislation would provide public utilities wth
simlar access for nmaintenance, repair, or data
acquisition in order to perform their duties. As an
exanple, meter readers for a gas conpany no |onger
physi cal |y exit their car to col | ect usage
information; instead the information is collected by
interrogating the neter as the neter reader drives
past the location. The drivers need to verify as they
drive by a home, for exanple, that the data is being
collected. Mre inportantly, if there is a gas |eak,
the driver will see on his screen device that there is
a problem with the line as he drives by the point of
leak. Finally, the drivers also receive nessages from
police and fire departnents in the case of an
enmergency where a gas line would need to be shut off.
O her public utilities, as defined in AS 42.05.990,
have simlar reasons for needing access to a screen
device in performance of their duties.

8:08: 23 AM

PH L STEYER, Director, Governnment Relations and Corporate
Communi cati ons, Chugach Electric Association (CEA), stated that
CEA has two primary uses of screen devices: to view the result
of nmeters being read by a radio signal; and to see the display
of a nobile mpping system He said both those systens have
made CEA nuch nore efficient.

8:10: 05 AM

JIM PCSEY, GCeneral Manager, Anchorage Minicipal Light & Power,
had his testinony, in support of HB 139 and in appreciation of
the work of the committee in addressing the issue, presented by
Phil Steyer.

MR. STEYER, in response to Chair Lynn, confirnmed that the
traditional neter reader is no |longer used; neters are now read
either by a van-nounted system or by a handheld device. He
illustrated the efficiency of the new system by noting that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 10, 2009



[ CEA] used to need thirteen neter readers, but now only needs
about three.

8:11:14 AM

BRI AN NEWIQON, President/CEOQ Golden Valley Electric Association
(GVEA), said he supports [HB 139]. He said GVEA has been using
nobil e devices in its trucks for about five years and, through
the use of handheld devices, is now doing the work with five
nmeter readers that used to require eight. He noted that GVEA
enbarked on a program to test the use of l|aptop [conputers] in
its trucks. He explained that some of the truck operators,
especially those who do repairs, use laptops and have the
ability to see the screen as they drive. The information
di spl ayed helps the truck operator get to the location nuch
qui cker . He said the use of laptops is a critical neans of
finding direction and becom ng nore efficient.

MR. NEWQON, in response Chair Lynn, said currently GVEA uses
cell phones to relay energency information, but ultimately the
conpany would like to link the laptop with nobile comunicati on,
which would enable it to receive and transmt orders from the
field renotely.

8:13:52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wants to ensure that the drivers
woul d not be using the | aptop while operating the vehicle.

8:14: 34 AM

MR. NEWON said drivers would be prohibited from entering data
while driving; they would use the screen to determ ne |ocation
but stop the vehicle before entering data.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wants the conmmttee to nake it
clear that that prohibition should be part of all the conpanies'
pol i ci es.

CHAIR LYNN said that would be the commttee's recomendation,
but the commttee has no power to say what goes into the
conpani es' nmanual s.

MR. NEWON said driving while entering information would be as
dangerous as driving while "texting” on a cell phone.

8:16: 18 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 10, 2009



CURTIS THAYER, Director, Corporate & External Affairs, ENSTAR
Nat ural Gas Conpany ("ENSTAR'), testified in support of HB 139

He said the passage of the bill would ensure that wutility
conpanies are in conpliance with state [|aw He related that
ENSTAR is a |eader in using new technology to inprove custoner
service and hold down operating costs. The conpany has been
using automated neter reading for 10 years, he noted, which
provi des custonmers with "real-tinme" information upon billing.
The system requires a van operator to drive through
nei ghbor hoods at 10 mles per hour, at which time [the reader]

acqui res data. M. Thayer reported that ENSTAR is |ooking to
introduce a field order system (FOCS) to provide real-tine
information on work orders between field personnel dispatch and
custoner service. He said ENSTAR currently dispatches its
service technicians and distribution crews as a normal course of
busi ness, which includes responding to gas |eaks, fires, and
ot her energency situations. He announced that ENSTAR s di spatch
response is ranked one of the best in the country, at 21 m nutes
conpared to the national average of 30 m nutes.

MR. THAYER, in response to Representative Seaton, said ENSTAR s
conpany policy is that the van operator pull over before doing
any testing or data input. Meter reading, he explained involves
data being received into a termnal [inside the van] as the
driver proceeds down the street.

8:19:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the word, "information", used [on
page 2, sub-paragraphs] (F), (G, and (1), neans information
comng in; it needs no further clarification.

8:19: 57 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

8:20: 08 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON indicated that sone utility conpani es had
expressed concern regarding the issue of vehicle dispatching and

response i nformation.

8:21: 20 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 10, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded by referred to a letter in
the commttee packet from Gerald P. Luckhaupt, Legislative
Counsel , dated March 4, 2009, which read, in part, as follows:

You have asked if the exception provided by this bil
for public "utility construction, maintenance, [or]

repair"” would include dispatching and response
information for those purposes. In ny opinion it
woul d include dispatching and response information as
wel | as other activities related to “"utility

construction, maintenance, [or] repair.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said this statement was transmtted to
the utility conpanies, and he stated his belief that they are
satisfied with the current |anguage.

8:22: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON opined that the term "data acquisition”
is a broad enough term to cover "anything they want to send to
these trucks.” He said he thinks it is not necessary to anend
t he | anguage.

8:22:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG indicated that the new |anguage [on
page 2, lines 13-15,] was drafted from | anguage provided by M.
Thayer and is based upon |anguage in [sub-paragraphs] (F), (G,
and (H)

8:23: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HB 139 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 139 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 136- PUBLI C RECORDS EXCEPTI ONS

8:23:41 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the |ast order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 136, "An Act Ilimting the release of «certain
i nformati on concerning certain public enployees or officials.”

[Before the comittee was CSHB 136, Version 26-LS0574\R
Luckhaupt, 2/25/09.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 10, 2009



8:23:58 AM

DANA STROMMEN, Staff, Representative Jay Ranras, on behalf of
the House Judiciary Standing Committee, sponsor, which is
chaired by Representative Ranras, discussed changes to HB 136
incorporated in Version 26-LS0574\E, Luckhaupt, 3/5/009. MVs.
Strommen indicated that Section 1 would provide that public
of ficer financial disclosure reports from nenbers of boards and
commi ssions whose only conpensation is per diem and travel
expenses would not be public record. Section 2, she indicated,
woul d amend AS 40.25.160 by adding a new section that would
require public agencies to withhold from public disclosure the
home address and tel ephone nunber and, in certain situations,
the name of certain law enforcenent officers that nay be
contained in public records. The list, she said, has been
narrowed, and would include: police officer, correctional
officer, nmunicipal correctional officer, and parole officer.
Furthernore, Section 2, subsection (d), wuld include the
definition of: correctional officer, municipal correctional
officer, parole officer, police officer, public agency, and
public record.

8:25:33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS), Version 26-LS0574\E, Luckhaupt, 3/5/09, as a
work draft. There being no objection, Version E was before the
conmittee.

8:26: 20 AM

JANE PIERSON, Staff, Representative Jay Ranras, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, echoed the remarks of M. Strommen regarding the
changes nmade by the commttee substitute and the narrowed range
of the proposed | egislation.

8:27:43 AM

M5. PIERSON, in response to Representative Seaton, said it has
been difficult to get qualified people to apply for Al aska's
boards and comm ssions, which are non-paying positions, and the
conmittee substitute would ensure that their financial data
would not be part of the public record. What would be
avai lable, in ternms of confirmations, would be the resunes,
histories, and forns filled out by those being confirned.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 10, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON surmised, "If it's not a public record
and we're having a confirmation hearing, we're not going to have
access to that information, because as soon as we have access to
it, it becones a public record, unless we're in executive
session.” He questioned the purpose of filling out a financia
record if no one can have access to it other than perhaps the
attorney general .

8:29: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON indicated that Section 1 of the CS is a
response to a request he made. He said as a |egislator he has
no trouble with the requirenent to nmake in-depth financial
reports, but opined that those who serve on boards and
commi ssions w thout conpensation should not be required to
report every piece of property they own and every penny they
maeke. The change nmade in Section 1 would nean that that
information would be available, but would only be [public] "if
action's taken place.™

CHAIR LYNN remarked that those who serve on boards and
commi ssions are part of the public policy process and suggested
that the public has a right to understand "where they my be
comng from or any potential conflict of interest that they
m ght have."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON replied that the public has that right,
but that does not nean they need to know what the public
persona's wife or child makes. He said it should be enough to
report that inconme was received from a certain conpany rather
than the exact details of the paynent. He reiterated that the
| evel of scrutiny placed on these people drives them away. He
said the people he is talking about "read |like a who's who of
Al aska," including bank presidents, financial |eaders, doctors,
and | awyers.

CHAIR LYNN pointed out that legislators volunteer to run for
of fice.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON concurred, but said |egislators know what

they are getting into. He reiterated that "this" keeps
qualified Al askans from wanting to get involved in government.
He said those people on boards and conmm ssions would still have

t o announce conflicts.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 10, 2009



CHAIR LYNN asked Representative Johnson if he thinks these
requi renents keep sonme qualified people from running for the
| egi slature or for adm nistrative or congressional offices.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON responded, "If they have sonething to
hi de, yes, sir. And if they have sonething to hide, they
shoul dn't be running."

CHAI R LYNN asked Representative Johnson if that would not apply
to those serving on boards and commi ssi ons.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON answered, "Not in a voluntary position.”
He clarified that legislators volunteer to run for office, but
they sign up to be candi dates. He added, "No one cane to you
and said you have to run." He predicted that the other
commttee nenbers may not be in agreement, but he warned that
people from the boards and comm ssions would approach them
regarding the loss of good people. He asked, "Wiy would an
attorney be able to volunteer and not have to disclose anything,
where a banker volunteers and does have to disclose everything?
What's the difference?"

CHAI R SEATON suggested this is essentially the sanme debate as
t ook place during the hearing of House Bill 109 - the governor's
ethics bill.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON replied that it is essentially the sane,
but "raises it to those that are volunteer."

8:37:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Sharon Weddl eton, the chief
financial officer for the Minicipality of Anchorage, had sent an
e-mail to him [included in the commttee packet], in which she
raised a lot of policy issues he said he wants to consider. He
noted that Version E elimnates "justice or judge" fromthe |ist
of those who would be allowed to request that persona
information contained in the records of a public agency be kept
confidential, and he questioned why.

8:38: 56 AM
MS. PI ERSON expl ai ned the renoval of that |anguage was to narrow

the scope of the bill; however, she said the bill sponsor would
not object to reinserting that |anguage.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 10, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks that is a good category
to keep in the bill. He related that he has been in famly |aw
cases when he and the judge have been threatened. He said he is
al so concerned about nmunicipal and state prosecuting attorneys
for the sanme reason. He said they are now being issued badges
for identification, and he asked that the bill sponsor ask for
i nput fromthe Departnment of Law regarding that issue.

8:40: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that Version E changes peace
officer to police officer, and he suggested peace officer would
be a broader term

8:41:23 AM

M5. STROWMEN indicated that the sponsor chose "police officer”
to narrow t he scope of the bill

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG told Representative Johnson about two
cases wherein the Alaska Suprenme Court judged a constitutional
right to privacy based not from the point of view of the
official, but fromthe point of view of the client. He said he
does not know if a person who conmes to a banker for a |oan may
have an expectation of privacy, as well. He said in the matter
of privacy rights, the legislature would be on firm |legal and
constitutional grounds to consider the issue "from the
classification of the client or the custoner - whether they have
a constitutional right of privacy."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, regarding Section 1 of Version E, said
he thinks there are tw reasons why people mght hesitate
serving [on a board or conm ssion]: First, because they don't
want to divulge information regarding thenselves or their
spouses; and second, because if they represent clients, they may
be concerned that serving may require their clients to give up
their right to privacy. He said he would probably support an
amendnent that would list classes of clientele who would have
constitutionally protected rights of privacy.

8:46: 35 AM
CHAIR LYNN said he understands the issue that Representative

Gruenberg has raised, but he expressed concern that the
| egi sl ati on coul d becone conpli cat ed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 10, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks the issue could be
addressed in a manner that would not be unwieldy. He offered an
exanpl e.

8:47: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that this issue was presented to
him by various entities across the state who operate wth boards
and comm ssi ons. He said he feels as passionately about this
i ssue as he does the issue of protecting police officers and he
"won't let one die for the other."

8:50:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN suggested this issue be brought up in a
separate bill. He said he is concerned that sone information be
required from those serving on boards and comm ssions in order
to determine iif those people have any "close economc
rel ati onshi ps" and, thus, a conflict of interest in issues that
they nay address. He said he is sure that is the reason that
the financial disclosure was required in the first place. He
offered his understanding that HB 136 was originally introduced
to try, for exanple, to "shield" sonme of the information and
protect police officers from crimnals who nay have just been
rel eased.

CHAI R LYNN concurr ed. He said he thinks the main focus of the
bill is about physical protection from predators. He said he
under st ands Representative Johnson's concern, but is not sure it
fits in the legislation before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG reenphasi zed hi s concern about
protecting clients, and he said he would like to pursue the
matter in the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

M5. PIERSON said she would have no problem working wth
Representati ve Gruenberg on the issue.

8:52: 50 AM

CHAI R LYNN opened public testinony.

8:53: 04 AM

JOHN CYR Executi ve Director, Publ i c Saf ety Enpl oyees

Associ ation (PSEA), testified in support of HB 136. He rel ated
that over the years, with the advent of the Internet and search

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 10, 2009



engi nes, officers - especially those working undercover to crack
down on drugs - are being harassed and threatened all around the
st at e. He stated, "It is no |onger uncommon for really bad
people to say to arresting officers, 'I know where you live; |
know where your wife works; | know where your kids go to
school.'" He indicated that the PSEA's intent in requesting the
bill was to [protect those officers from harm. In response to
a question from Chair Lynn, he said clearly the focus of PSEA is
public safety, and he expressed concern that nothing be added to
the bill that woul d jeopardize its passage.

8:55: 07 AM
MR. CYR, in response to a question from Representative Seaton,

said he is not Internet savvy enough to know exactly how nuch
information is "out there,"” but said PSEA s mmjor concern has

been regarding the information on the assessor's tax roll list,
which he said is readily avail able and all ows anyone to pinpoint
where officers |live. He said the problem originated in
Fai r banks, where officers, during busts of some  heavy

met hanphet am ne ("neth") dealers and neth rings, have found maps
of people's hones, their addresses, and bonmb-nmaki ng materi al s.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON indicated that he would like those in M.
Cyr's departnment who are Internet savvy to tell the commttee if
there are other sources beside the assessor's roll, wherein
people could easily obtain a resident's address. He expl ai ned
that he is considering this issue from the standpoint of policy
and the responsibility that may be placed on nmunicipalities
related to their reliability in releasing information

MR CYR agreed to speak with his enployees and return wth
i nformation.

8:58: 53 AM

JEFF LANDVATTER, Southeast Vice President, Board of Directors

Department of Public Safety, told the commttee that he is an
Al aska State Trooper with 24 years of service to the state. He
stated that peace officers need to know that their hones and
famlies are safe so that they can go to work and do the job
that is asked of them and HB 136 would give those officers one
nore tool to renmove personal information from public view He
said officers are trained to deal wth crimnals but their
famlies are not. M. Landvatter related that he has been
threatened several tinmes, which he said gives an officer pause
to think about whether he/she is doing everything possible to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 10, 2009



protect his/her famly. He tal ked about the sinple and quick
access to a person's address via the assessor's office
information. He indicated that the bill would not be a fix-all
but is a good start toward stopping sone information from being
readily accessible to the public.

9:01: 26 AM

MR. LANDVATTER, in response to Chair Lynn, said he does not have
enough information to be able to speak to Representative
Johnson's previously stated concern; his own concern is
primarily in regard to public safety.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited Falcon vs. Alaska Public Ofices

Comm ssion 570p 2nd 469 Al aska 1977, as focusing on the class of
patients rather than on the class of the public officials.

9:03: 23 AM

MR. LANDVATTER, in response to Representative Seaton, said peace
officer is a broader term so it would be up to the conmttee to
decide if it wants to include people who perhaps have a |ess
than full conm ssion. He said he thinks the [judicial branch]
should speak for itself [in response to the previously noted
change of I|anguage in Version FE|. He clarified that the
coverage he is seeking through his testinony is for police
of ficers. In response to Chair Lynn, he said he would have to
research to know if that would include Village Public Safety
Oficers (VPSQs).

9:04: 24 AM

ROB HUEN, Chief of Police, Anchorage Police Departnent,
Anchorage, Alaska, had his testinony in support of HB 136
presented by Robert d en.

DEREK  HSI EH, Pr esi dent, Executive Board, Anchorage Police
Department Enpl oyees' Association (APDEA), had his testinony
relating the APDEA s support of HB 136 presented by Robert G en.

ROBERT GLEN, Sergeant, Internal Affairs Unit, said his job
i nvol ves investigation into allegations of police msconduct.
He related an incident which illustrates the inportance of
protecting officers from people who are not enotionally stable.
Regarding the previously stated concern about judges and
prosecutors taken off the list, he said not only has he had his
own life and the lives of his famly threatened, but he has al so

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 10, 2009



seen a lot of hostility directed against prosecutors and judges

during trial - especially during sentencing. He surm sed that
prosecutors and judges would have legitimate fears and concerns
related to this issue. In response to a question from

Representative Guenberg, he confirned that he has heard of
cases in which public defenders have al so been threatened.

CHAIR LYNN commented that it is possible that "everybody could
be threatened at one tine or another,"” and he said the commttee
needs to "put sone sideboards on this."

9:08: 26 AM

KELLY TAYLOR, Deputy Adm nistrator, Minicipality of Anchorage,
stated, "I'm speaking on my own personal behalf, and also
representing the thoughts and concerns for Marty McGee who's the
muni ci pal assessor here."

M5. TAYLOR said the intent of the proposed |legislation is good,
and she said she can certainly understand the concerns of those
who have testified. However, she explained that the concern of
her office and that of the assessor's office is regarding the
narrowi ng of scope to cover only the property appraisal and tax
web site. Ms. Taylor related that the information that is
provi ded on the nunicipal assessor's web site in Anchorage is an
exact replication of the information that is provided from the

State Recorder's Ofice. That neans, she explained, that
however a property owner's title is recorded by the State of
Al aska, it wll be presented exactly the same way in the

muni ci pal assessor's database. She stated, "The purpose of the
real property recording systemis to provide constructive notice
of the existence of any interest of real property in Anchorage."

M5. TAYLOR indicated that her experience as a honmeowner has
taught her that the idea of privacy in ownership is an illusion.

She indicated that there are nmany web sites that a person could
use other than that of the assessor to find out where soneone

lives. She said there are many privately owned web sites that
"redistribute information." She reiterated that the original
site of the source of that information is from the State
Recorder's Ofice. She opined that individuals wth a
hei ghtened need for privacy should be encouraged to put their
property into a trust or limted liability corporation or "some
other fashion" before recording it with the State Recorder's
Ofice, in order that there be no association between their

personal nane and a specific piece of property.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 10, 2009



M5. TAYLOR concluded, "W strongly request that the bill be
anended to prohibit the release of the honme address, the
t el ephone nunber of a person who is eligible and applies for
confidentiality along with the name."™ She noted that in an e-
mai |, Ms. Weddl eton has suggested annual maintenance and proof
if the choice is made for the assessor to be responsible for
mai ntai ning the confidentiality of an individual.

9:13: 01 AM
M5. TAYLOR, in response to a request for clarification from

Representati ve Seaton, stated her understanding that the base of
information on the assessor's web site is derived fromthe State

of Al aska. She related that the assessor's office receives a
disc weekly that contains all the public docunents that are
recor ded. The nunicipal staff then 1ooks through that
information and pulls out quick claimdeeds or warranty deeds to
track the change of ownership of a piece of property. In
response to a followup question, she said the assessor's
database will reveal the information that is recorded on the
deed or ownership record of a specific piece of property. In a

case where 38 nanes were associated with a trust, for exanple,
the assessor's office would only list the first couple of names
because of "the field constriction."

9:15: 07 AM
SHARON WEDDLETQN, Chief Financial Oficer (CFO, Mnicipality of

Anchorage, noted that she had testified at the prior hearing on
HB 136. She stated that the Minicipality of Anchorage wll

support the concept of the bill if it can be "anended properly."
Upon the chair's invitation, she listed the anmendnents that the
muni ci pality would like to see. First, she said, would be an

anendnent to include only property tax web sites. Second, would
be an anmendnment to prohibit the release of a name concurrent
with the address of a police officer who desires protection,

which would still allow the property tax web site to show the
property, its assessed value, and its tax history, wthout
showi ng the nane. She said that would offer a better balance

between the public's right to information and the police
officer's right to protect hinfherself and his/her famly. She
noted that a pseudonym could be used. Third, would be an
anmendnent to change the current requirenent of nunicipalities,
cities, and boroughs to provide daily wupdates related to
applications for confidentiality on their property tax web sites
to a nore reasonable requirenent of updating either quarterly or
annual | y. Last, would be an anendnent providing that those

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 10, 2009



muni ci palities, cities, and boroughs that nmke fair and
reasonable attenpts to naintain the confidentiality of police
officers would be held harmess in the event that an
adm ni strative error caused a nane to erroneously be displ ayed.

9:17: 56 AM

CHAIR LYNN expressed his desire not to hold the bill back, but
instead to address those proposed changes in the House Judiciary
St andi ng Comm ttee.

9:18:45 AM
M5. WEDDLETON, in response to Representative Petersen, said the

pseudonym would need to blend in to the list; John or Jane Doe
woul d probably draw nore attention to the property than |eaving

the original nane. She explained that the nmunicipality would
nost likely keep a paper list showing both the officer's nane
and the pseudonym being used on the web site. She said this

woul d al | ow public disclosure of properties owned.

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if not listing soneone's nane on a
property list would create problens such as creditors not being
able to find the person.

M5. WEDDLETON said she does not know the answer to that
guestion, but she related that she would be nore concerned about
protecting police from harm than about getting in the way of a
creditor.

9:21:29 AM
M5. WEDDLETON, in response to Representative Seaton, said the
pseudonym would be used only for listing the person's primary
resi dence.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted another issue that had been brought
to light was concerning the use of [a pseudonymi in the State

Recorder's Ofice. He asked, "Does that also get to the sane
poi nt ?"

MS. WEDDLETON answered, "I believe it would achieve the sane
obj ective."

9:22:51 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 10, 2009



ROBERT PEARSON, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
said he could not offer nmuch coment on the provisions of
Version E wthout further study. However, he said the
depart ment woul d have no probl em devel oping the forns that would
be wused to apply for <confidentiality and distributing the
protected nanes to the applicable parties.

Representative Seaton directed attention to |anguage [on page 1,
begi nning on line 12, which read as foll ows]:

A public agency may not release the portions of a
public record that include the honme address or
tel ephone nunber of a person who is eligible for
confidentiality

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that |anguage is not limted to the
assessor's office, but also includes the databases used by the
Division of Mdtor Vehicles and the Division of Sport Fishing to
issue |icenses. He asked M. Pearson if he has considered which
dat abases in which departnents would be affected by the bill.
He clarified that he wants to know if the inclusion of "or
t el ephone nunber” would significantly expand the nunber of
agencies that would have to undergo sone change from present
practices.

9:26: 13 AM

MR. PEARSON said the Departnment of Adm nistration would not be
af fected because it does not release tel ephone nunmbers in the
course of business. He said he <cannot speak for other
depart nents.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed the sane interest regarding the

inclusion of "hone address". He said he assunes that would
affect the Al aska Department of Fish & Game (ADF&GS) and the
Commercial Fisheries Entry Comm ssion, for exanple. He asked

M. Pearson to conment.

MR. PEARSON agreed that ADF&G would be affected. He said within
the Departnent of Administration, there is the D vision of
Personnel, but the information therein is not public and would
not be released under current |aw. He said although driver's
| icenses can have nmiling addresses listed on them vehicles are
identified with a physical address. He said, "That would be
sonmet hing that would be affected by this bill."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 10, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, "How would you see this form being
used by DOT to not allow access to the DOl permt database?"

9:29:39 AM
MR. PEARSON r esponded:

| think that what we would have to do is collect this
form and develop a list of all departnents that are

affected by this bill, and then just routinely, when a
new form was filed, distribute a copy to al
depart nment s. C During that process, we would

identify all of the potentially affected information,
and we would meke sure that copies of this form were
distributed to all of the relevant departnents.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the adm nistration has an opinion
regarding the timng of the renoval of the nmaterial from
dat abases.

9:30: 50 AM

MR. PEARSON said he has not considered that issue. He said the
information would still be on databases; it just would not be
rel eased to the public.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated his understanding that the bill
woul d require each agency to "scrub"” confidential information on
its database from public view.

9:33: 35 AM

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Anchorage Ofice, Division of
Community and Regional Affairs, confirnmed Ms. Taylor's remarks
that the information in the municipal assessor's database is

derived from the State Recorder's Ofice. He said, "W
certainly want to see the officers protected, too, but | just
don't feel like we're doing a service to them by saying, 'W're

going to give you peace of mnd by blocking the assessor's
office," when we can go back door through the Recorder's Ofice
and get the sanme information that the assessor has." He
indicated that it would make nore sense to show officers "how
they could change their nanmes, put it in trust, whatever, when
they got the property or took the job."

9:35: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 10, 2009



CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else to
testify, closed public testinony.

9:35:24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, to renove
Section 1 fromVersion E© [Section 1 read as follows:]

*Section 1. AS 39.50.050(c) is anended to read:

(c) Reports filed under this chapter shall be
kept on file for at least six years and are public
records except that a report received froma nenber of
a state board or conm ssion whose only conpensati on as
a nenber of that board or commission is per diem and
travel expenses under AS 39.20.180 is not a public
record.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON obj ect ed. He said he thinks the issue
has been recently related and that when the admnistration,
muni ci palities, and boards and conm ssions understand the issue,
there will be nore feedback regarding it. He said he expects
the issue to conme up in the House Judiciary Standing Commttee,
as well as during House and Senate floor discussions. He said
if the House State Affairs Standing Comrittee is going to nove
the bill forward and allow the House Judiciary Standing
Committee fix it, he thinks [Anmendnent 1] should be forwarded
with that sane consideration

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said Amendnent 1 is within the purview of
the House State Affairs Standing Commttee. He expressed
concern regarding those who would be exenpted by Section 1. He
said there is nothing witten about <conflict of interest
di scl osure. He added, "That is the financial disclosure; that
is what conflict of interests are." He said there were
consultants getting paid |arge anmounts of noney, who did not
have to disclose that they were making the regulation ... for
the industry. He said, "If a municipality is comng to us and
saying that we need to change this, they're saying that their
citizens will not agree to renoving thenselves fromthis ethica
and financial conflict, and they want us to do it for them
because their citizens will not allow that." Representati ve
Seaton stated that he wants to renove the nunicipalities'
consi deration from this si nce t he option exi sts for
muni ci palities to exenpt thensel ves.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated, "This is the entire basis -
di scl osure. I mean, we will not have this information; we wll

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 10, 2009



not know when we have a confirmation hearing. He said once a

| egislative office receives "the information,"™ it is public
i nformation. Ther ef or e, " by maki ng this confidenti al
information, we will not have this as well." He continued:

And so, the idea that somehow we're going to hold this
in secret anong ourselves, unless we're having an
executive session, ... | don't think that's correct.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated his belief that every board and
conmi ssi on nmenber being appointed now knows the |law. He/she may
or may not wi sh to volunteer based on what nust be disclosed.

Representative Seaton said, "W're only talking really about
state boards and conmm ssions, and they form the policy and
regul ati ons. Every elected or appointed board, we've got to
remenber that their regulation cones through, and as long as
they're legal, as long as they don't violate the law, the

lieutenant only puts a tine stanp on that regul ation. [ He/ she]

would have no ability to nodify or reject those
regul ations." He said w thout financial disclosure, conflicts
of interest will "conme back to bite ... the entire state" in
terns of making policy.

9:41: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he is less inclined to withdraw his
obj ection upon hearing that "this is only ... to be the purview
of the" House State Affairs Standing Conmttee. He said he does
not recall ever seeing financial information during confirmation
heari ngs. The | anguage in the bill does not say that a person
would not still have to declare a conflict. He stated that
"what this says" is that the witten financial disclosure report
that is submtted should not be nade public. He said he would
"point that out" to the nunicipal assenbly people and the people
who appoint boards and nunicipalities who have been contacting
him He reiterated that he is not opposed to full disclosure by
anyone serving in a position, he just does not want that
information made public automatically. He added, "It's very
much |i ke when we have an ethics conplaint: it is private unti
such time as it's needed.”

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON wi t hdrew hi s objection to Arendnent 1.
9:43:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected to Amendnment 1 for discussion
pur poses. He noted that his office has had occasion to access

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 10, 2009



financial information [on 1line]. He reiterated his concern
about protecting constitutional right to privacy of certain
cl asses of clients, a subject which he said is directly within

the purview of the House Judiciary Standing Comittee. He
stated his intention to pursue the issue with the bill sponsor
He said the bill contains many issues and will have a dramatic

effect throughout state and |ocal governnent, and he said he is
willing to work on the issues in the House State Affairs
Standing Commttee or in the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r enoved his objection to Arendnent 1.
9:46: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said he agrees with the proposal to
renove Section 1 and address it in separate |egislation. Wth
t hat section gone, he said, there still will be a lot of work to
do on HB 136. He expressed concern that the sponsor of the bil
is the chair of the next conmmttee of referral - the House
Judiciary Standing Commttee - and he wants to ensure that the
bill does not "slide through there wthout a |lot of
i mprovenent . "

CHAIR LYNN expressed his desire that the House Judiciary
Standing Conmittee consider protection of prosecutors and
def ense attorneys. He comented that being a judge is a
danger ous j ob.

9:48: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON suggested that before the bill is sent
over to the Senate for its consideration, the title should be
anmended to include nention of "the exact people we're trying to
cover."

CHAI R LYNN sai d he agrees.

9:49: 15 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that there being no further objection,
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

9:49: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved Conceptual Anendnment 2, to anend the
bill so that the release of the nane, residential address, or

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 10, 2009



t el ephone nunber would not be released concurrently or
conj oi ned.

9:50: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for discussion purposes. He
said he would |ike the anendnment offered in the House Judiciary
Standing Conmttee in a | ess vague manner.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that there has been testinony
stating that the releasing of the name attached to resident
information is a problem and it would be nuch nore expensive

and difficult if the nmunicipalities had to omt certain
residents from the tax rolls entirely. He said, "If this is
such that they can't release any of the tax roll information,
then all of a sudden we form a huge problem for the
muni cipalities in which they're going to have partial tax
rolls." Representative Seaton said that is not the purpose of
the bill. The purpose, he enphasized, is not to attach tax rol

information to the person requesting confidentiality.
9:52: 03 AM

M5. PEARSON directed attention to |anguage on page 2, lines 2-3,
[of Version E], which read, "the nane of a person who is
eligible for confidentiality under (b) of this section and has
applied for confidentiality as provided in (c) of this section

may not be disclosed.” She offered her understanding that the
address would still be part of the data base and would be public
i nformation.

9:52:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said if the sponsor thinks that |anguage
addresses the issue, he would be willing to w thdraw Conceptua
Amendnent 2 and ask that the sponsor check with those who
subnmitted the idea for the anendnent between now and the bill
hearing in the next conmttee of referral.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d he does not know if the amendnent
is needed or not, but reiterated his willingness to work with
t he sponsor.

9:53:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wi t hdrew Concept ual Amendnent 2.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 10, 2009



9:54:17 AM

M5. PEARSON, in response to Representative Seaton, said she has
been thinking about the issue of rnunicipalities updating
records, and while she does not think a quarterly update
requi renent would be bad, in the case where soneone is being
threatened and there is present danger, waiting a year would not
be a good idea. She expressed her wllingness to work with
those involved to find a good bal ance for the requirenent.

9:54: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that he is content to know that
the sponsor will address the issue.

9:55:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN questioned the change from peace officer
to police officer, when the fornmer has a broader scope than the
latter.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited AS 01.10.060(h)(7) as defining
peace officer and AS 18.65.290(7) - which is referenced in the
bill - as defining police officer. He directed attention to the
notes of the latter statute, which states that all police
officers are peace officers, but sone police officers - such as
Village Public Safety Oficers (VPSGs) - are not police
of ficers. He said presumably, anyone who lives in a little
village would already know where the VPSO I|ives. He said he
thinks this is an issue that the House Judiciary Standing
Conmm ttee needs to address.

9:56: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report CSHB 136, Version 26-
LSO574\E, Luckhaupt, 3/5/09, as anended, out of committee wth
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 136(STA) was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conm tt ee.

9:57: 46 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the upcom ng conmmittee cal endar.

9: 58: 08 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 10, 2009



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:58
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 10, 2009



